
 

         

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Thousand Oaks Community Development District is a special purpose unit of local government created 
under Florida Law, chapter 190, for the purpose of financing, constructing, operating, and maintaining 

community-wide infrastructure, improvements, and services for the benefit of the properties within its boundaries. 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

PALM BEACH COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

& PUBLIC HEARING 
JUNE 12, 2023 

4:15 P.M. 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.thousandoakscdd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



AGENDA 
THOUSAND OAKS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Thousand Oaks HOA Office 
1034 Center Stone Lane 

Riviera Beach, Florida 33404 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING & PUBLIC HEARING 

June 12, 2023 
4:15 p.m. 

 
 
A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication…………………………………………………………………………………...Page 1  

C. Moment of Silence 

D. Establish Quorum 

E. Additions or Deletions to Agenda/ Board Member Disclosures   

F. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

G. Approval of Minutes  

1. May 8, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Minutes……………………………....................................Page 3 

H. Public Hearing 

1. Proof of Publication……………………………………………………………………………….Page 7 

2. Receive Public Comments on Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Final Budget 

3. Consider Resolution No. 2023-03 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Final Budget…………..Page 8 

I. Old Business 

1. Update on Funds Owed to the HOA Regarding Fence-Line Tree Trimming 

2. Update on Newsletter and Website 

3. Update on Fountain Installation 

4. Update Regarding Encroachment Issue 

5. Update on Next Step’s for Thousand Oaks New Logo 

6. Update on Greenblade Planting and Mulching Project 

J. New Business 

1. Consider Resolution No. 2023-04 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Meeting Schedule……..Page 15 

2. Consider Appointment of Audit Committee & Approval of Evaluation Criteria………………...Page 17 

K. Administrative Matters 

L. Attorney Matters 

M. Board Members Comments 

N. Adjourn 



Page 1



Page 2



Page 1 of 4 
 

THOUSAND OAKS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

MAY 8, 2023 
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The May 8, 2023, Regular Board Meeting of the Thousand Oaks Community Development District (the 
“District”) was called to order at 4:15 p.m. in the Thousand Oaks’ HOA Office located at 1034 Center Stone 
Lane, Riviera Beach, Florida 33404. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been published in The 
Palm Beach Post on September 19, 2022, as part of the District’s Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Regular Board 
Meeting, as legally required.  
 
C. MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 
D. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
A quorum was established by the presence of Chairman Jeff Jackson, Vice Chairman Rance Gaede and 
Supervisors Malachi Knowles, Horace Towns and Corey Smith. 
  
Staff present included District Manager Sylvia Bethel of Special District Services, Inc.; and District Counsel 
Frank Palen of Caldwell Pacetti Edwards Schoech & Viator LLP. 
 
E. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda. 
 
F. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
There were no comments from the public for items not on the agenda. 
 
G. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  April 10, 2023, Regular Board Meeting 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Gaede, seconded by Mr. Towns and passed unanimously approving the April 
10, 2023, Regular Board Meeting minutes, as presented. 
 
H. OLD BUSINESS 
 1.  Update on Funds Owed to HOA Regarding Fence Line Tree Trimming 
 
Ms. Bethel advised that the HOA had sent her an invoice for tree trimming.  Mr. Jackson stated that the 
HOA had been trimming the trees for years without full reimbursement from the CDD. The current 
agreement did not account for inflation.  Mr. Palen stated he was uncertain if the existing agreement with 
the HOA included tree trimming. The contract appears to provide for trimming landscape areas and 
shrubbery.  It does not expressly provide for “tree trimming.”   It is a question of interpretation.  The history 

Page 3



Page 2 of 4 
 

of tree trimming could be interpreted to mean an “oral” agreement to do so exists.  If so, reimbursement  
would be limited to four years under the Florida Statute of Limitations, Sec. 95.11, F.S.  It is up to the Board 
to decide if tree trimming is covered under the agreement.  If so, the HOA would be entitled to five years’ 
reimbursement for tree trimming.  
 
A lengthy discussion ensued.  
 
A motion was made by Mr. Smith, seconded by Mr. Towns approving the term of “tree trimming” was 
included in the meaning of the agreement between the HOA and CDD regarding landscape maintenance 
and that the HOA was entitled to five years for reimbursement. 
 
Mr. Knowles raised a point of order regarding the appropriateness of Messrs. Jackson and Gaede voting on 
this matter since both serve as members of the Terracina HOA Board of Directors.  Mr. Knowles directed 
his inquiry to Mr. Palen for his legal opinion.   After  inquiry,  Mr. Palen concluded, in his opinion, neither 
Mr. Jackson nor Mr. Gaede had conflicts of interest.  On the basis of their statements, neither they, their 
family members, nor their business associates had any personal gain or other financial interest in the 
outcome of this vote.  He therefore concluded they could vote. 
 
Mr. Towns suggested the two Board Members abstain from voting.  Mr. Palen stated that in the absence of 
a conflict, a Board Member who is present must vote.  Mr. Smith suggested the two Board Members voate 
against the motion.   
 
Upon being put to a vote, the motion carried 3 to 2 with Messers. Jackson and Gaede dissenting. 
 
In the discussion that followed, Mr. Jackson asked Mr. Palen to draw up a revised agreement that includes 
tree trimming.  With respect to future trimming, he stated the HOA would get bids and bring back to the 
CDD for consideration.  With regard to the reimbursement of the past five years’ expense, Mr. Jackson 
indicated the HOA would provide a more detailed accounting of its expenses.   
 
 2.  Update on Newsletter and Website 
 
Mr. Towns stated that he would ask the Kolmio Global representative to attend the next meeting via Zoom 
or in person.  He will also send the information to Ms. Bethel to send to the Board for review.  
 
 3.  Update on Fountain Installation 
 
Ms. Bethel advised that Palm Beach Aquatics had informed her that the electrician was more than halfway 
through the permitting process and the last step would be the inspection.  Once that has been completed, 
then the fountain could be installed.  
 
 4.  Discussion Regarding Encroachment Issue 
 
Ms. Bethel advised that she had reached out to Mr. Wells for an update and received no response as of yet. 
Mr. Jackson indicated he spoke with Mr. Wells and added a few more requirements and would have him at 
the next meeting.  Mr. Jackson asked Ms. Bethel to email Mr. Wells the requirements again and copy him 
on the email. 
 
 5.  Update on Next Steps for Thousand Oaks’ New Logo 
 

Page 4



Page 3 of 4 
 

Mr. Towns advised that this could take a few months.  Mr. Towns asked Ms. Bethel about the invoice for 
the shirts and she indicated that she would work on that shortly.  
 
 6.  Consider Proposals for Planting and Mulch 
 
Ms. Bethel reminded the Board that they had requested that Russ Total Lawn Maintenance include another 
proposal for the Clusia and directed the Board’s attention the Page 10 in the meeting book.  A discussion 
ensued. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Gaede, seconded by Mr. Knowles and unanimously passed approving 
GreenBlade’s Plant & Mulch installation in the amount of $17,534. 
 
I. NEW BUSINESS 
 
There were no New Business items to come before the Board. 
 
J. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
  
Ms. Bethel stated that a resident from Villa Rosa had contacted her and inquired about pressure cleaning 
the sidewalks along Congress.  She advised him that the CDD did not own the sidewalks and they were not 
responsible for their cleaning.  Mr. Jackson stated the City would say it was not their responsibility and 
asked staff to get a proposal for a surveyor or call the City to identify the line.  Mr. Palen stated this was a 
County/City issue and we could not spend funds on private entities.  
 
K. ATTORNEY MATTERS 
 
Mr. Palen advised that the law for ethics training had passed and would begin next year, January 1, 2024, 
wherein each Board Member would be required to have four hours of training each calendar year. 
 
L. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Gaede noted that the hedges along Congress Avenue in front of the community were growing into the 
trees.  Mr. Jackson requested that Mr. Gaede report this to the HOA. 
 
Mr. Knowles stated Ms. Bethel was supposed to bring FASD conference information to the meeting.  Ms. 
Bethel stated she would e-mail the Board about the conference and would also bring the information to the 
next meeting.  
 
Mr. Knowles inquired about the CDD e-mail address received and Mr. Towns answered that the e-mails 
are not attached to anything as of the moment because he was waiting on the new website.  In the meantime, 
he can link the e-mail addresses with the old website until the new one is ready.  
 
M. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting was adjourned at 5:23 p.m.  There 
were no objections. 
 
  
 

Page 5



Page 4 of 4 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
________________________________ __________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chair/Vice Chair 

Page 6



Miscellaneous Notices  
Published in Palm Beach Daily Business Review on May 30, 2023 

Location 
Palm Beach County, Florida 
Notice Text 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING AND REGULAR BOARD MEETING OF THE 
THOUSAND OAKS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
The Board of Supervisors of the Thousand Oaks Community Development 
District (the "District") will hold a Public Hearing and Regular Board Meeting 
on June 12, 2023, at 4:15 p.m., or as soon thereafter as can be heard, in the 
Thousand Oaks' HOA office located at 1034 Center Stone Lane, Riviera Beach, 
Florida 33404. 
The purpose of the Public Hearing is to receive public comment on the Fiscal 
Year 2023/2024 Proposed Final Budget of the District. The purpose of the 
Regular Board Meeting is for the Board to consider any other business which 
may properly come before it. A copy of the Budget and/or the Agenda may be 
obtained from the District's website (www.thousandoakscdd.org) or at the 
offices of the District Manager, Special District Services, Inc., 2501A Burns 
Road, Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410, during normal business hours. The 
meetings are open to the public and will be conducted in accordance with the 
provisions of Florida law for community development districts. Meetings may 
be continued as found necessary to a time and place specified on the record. 
There may be occasions when one or more Supervisors will participate by 
telephone; therefore, a speaker telephone will be present at the meeting 
location so that Supervisors may be fully informed of the discussions taking 
place. 
In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any 
person requiring special accommodations or an interpreter to participate at 
these meetings should contact the District Manager at (561) 630-4922 and/or 
toll-free at 1-877-737-4922, at least seven (7) days prior to the date of the 
meetings. 
If any person decides to appeal any decision made with respect to any matter 
considered at this Public Hearing and Regular Board Meeting, such person will 
need a record of the proceedings and such person may need to ensure that a 
verbatim record of the proceedings is made at their own expense and which 
record includes the testimony and evidence on which the appeal is based. 
Thousand Oaks Community Development District 
www.thousandoakscdd.org 
5/23-30 23-01/0000663889P 
 

Page 7



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-03 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE THOUSAND OAKS COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT ADOPTING A FISCAL YEAR 2023/2024 
BUDGET.  

 
 WHEREAS, the Thousand Oaks Community Development District (“District”) has 
prepared a Proposed Budget and Final Special Assessment Roll for Fiscal Year 2023/2024 and 
has held a duly advertised Public Hearing to receive public comments on the Proposed Budget 
and Final Special Assessment Roll; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, following the Public Hearing and the adoption of the Proposed Budget and 
Final Assessment Roll, the District is now authorized to levy non ad-valorem assessments upon 
the properties within the District. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE THOUSAND OAKS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT THAT:  
 
 Section 1. The Final Budget and Final Special Assessment Roll for Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is approved and adopted, and the assessments 
set forth therein shall be levied. 
 
 Section 2. The Secretary of the District is authorized to execute any and all necessary 
transmittals, certifications or other acknowledgements or writings, as necessary, to comply with 
the intent of this Resolution. 
  

PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 12th day of June, 2023. 
 

 
ATTEST: THOUSAND OAKS 
 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
By:  By:  
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice Chairperson 
 

Page 8



     Thousand Oaks
 Community Development District

       Final Budget For
       Fiscal Year 2023/2024

           October 1, 2023 - September 30, 2024

Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-04 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
THOUSAND OAKS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, 
ESTABLISHING A REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE FOR FISCAL 
YEAR 2023/2024 AND SETTING THE TIME AND LOCATION OF 
SAID DISTRICT MEETINGS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary for the Thousand Oaks Community Development District 

("District") to establish a regular meeting schedule for fiscal year 2023/2024; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the District has set a regular meeting schedule, 

location and time for District meetings for fiscal year 2023/2024 which is attached hereto and 

made a part hereof as Exhibit “A”. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

OF THE THOUSAND OAKS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, PALM 
BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. The above recitals are hereby adopted. 

 
Section 2. The regular meeting schedule, time and location for meetings for fiscal 

year 2023/2024 which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is hereby adopted and authorized to be 

published. 

 
PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 12th day of June, 2023. 

 

 
ATTEST: THOUSAND OAKS 
 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
By:                                                                       By:                
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice Chairperson 
 

Page 15



THOUSAND OAKS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 FISCAL YEAR 2023/2024 REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board of Supervisors of the Thousand Oaks Community 
Development District will hold Regular Meetings at 4:15 p.m. in the Thousand Oaks HOA Office 
located at 1034 Center Stone Lane, Riviera Beach, Florida 33404, on the following dates: 
 

October 09, 2023 
November 13, 2023 
December 11, 2023 

January 8, 2024 
February 12, 2024 

March 04, 2024 
April 08, 2024 
May 13, 2024 
June 10, 2024 
July 08, 2024 

August 12, 2024 
September 09, 2024 

 
The purpose of the meetings is to conduct any business coming before the Board.  The meetings 
are open to the public and will be conducted in accordance with the provisions of Florida law.  
Copies of the Agendas for any of the meetings may be obtained from the District’s website or by 
contacting the District Manager at (561) 630-4922 and/or toll free at 1-877-737-4922 prior to the 
date of the particular meeting. 
 
From time to time one or more Supervisors may participate by telephone; therefore, at the location 
of these meetings there will be a speaker telephone present so that interested persons can attend 
the meetings at the above location and be fully informed of the discussions taking place either in 
person or by telephone communication.  Meetings may be continued as found necessary to a time 
and place specified on the record. 
 
If any person decides to appeal any decision made with respect to any matter considered at these 
meetings, such person will need a record of the proceedings and such person may need to insure 
that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made at his or her own expense and which record 
includes the testimony and evidence on which the appeal is based. 
 
In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring 
special accommodations or an interpreter to participate at any of these meeting should contact the 
District Manager at (561) 630-4922 and/or toll free at 1-877-737-4922 at least seven (7) days prior 
to the date of the particular meeting. 
 
Meetings may be cancelled from time to time without advertised notice. 
 
THOUSAND OAKS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
PUBLISH:  PALM BEACH DAILY BUSINESS REVIEW    09/19/22 

Page 16



Ability of Personnel (10 Points). 

Proposer’s Experience (10 Points). 

Understanding of Scope of Work (10 Points). 

Ability to Furnish the Required Services (10 Points). 

Price (10 Points). 

Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20


	Thousand Oaks Community Development District - Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	May 8, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Public Hearing
	Proof of Publication
	Consider Resolution No. 2023-03 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Final Budget

	Consider Resolution No. 2023-04 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Meeting Schedule
	Consider Appointment of Audit Committee & Approval of Evaluation Criteria




